
Page 1 of 5 

 
 
 
 

 
 

GREENHEAD COLLEGE CORPORATION 
Minutes of Capital Development Committee meeting held virtually using Teams 

Wednesday, 18 September 2024, 4pm 
 

Govs present: Adrian Barrass; Liz Bowen (from 16.21); Richard Armstrong 
(Chair); Mo Bunter (Principal); Stuart Irving 

                                  
In attendance:  Lauren Metcalfe (DoFF); Sarah Walters (DoEO); Tom Rowley (AP); 

Sharon Roper (Clerk) 
 

Apologies:   John Holroyd; Mark Howells 
                                                       
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
1. Welcome, 
apologies 
 

 
RAR welcomed members. 
Apologies received as above.  
 

 
 

 
2. Declarations 
 

 
No declarations of pecuniary/prejudicial interest on the part 
of Governors or CLT participants. 
 

 
 

 
3. Minutes 22/5/24 
& 26/6/24 
 

 
3.1 Capital Development Committee 22/5/24 & 26/6/24 
minutes, previously circulated, both approved by 
Committee, signed by Chair, returned to Clerk for filing 
 
3.2 Matters arising: 
1. RAR asked that the Outstanding Actions due dates of 
31/10/24 are changed to 23/10/24 which is the next CDC 
meeting, so no actions are overlooked.   
2. (22/5/24 Min 4.4) SWA continues to chase the data 
around Hirst’s energy efficiency, she is waiting to be added 
to a portal which will allow her access to the energy reports. 
RAR asked that the information also be sent to F&E 
committee when it is available. 
3. (22/5/24 Min 5.8) Financial forecasts for site expansion, 
RAR asked if recommendations about site expansion can 
be made at Corporation on 14/10/24. LME will present 
forecasts at F&E on 30/9 and Corporation 14/10, with the 
new pay award and the Hirst remodel cost.       
4. (26/6/24 Min 4.27) RAR asked that a recommendation is 
made at Corporation on 14/10/24 for timelines around any 
new builds or a pause.  
5. (26/6/24 Min 5.4) SWA confirmed that GC are meeting 
the Football Foundation to discuss Highfields on 3/10/24. 
 

 
 
 
Clerk  
 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 



Page 2 of 5 

 
4. Progress of the 
Hirst Building, 
Phase 3 
associated 
timelines and 
wider Estates 
Strategy  

 
4. SWA gave a verbal update on Hirst Building, Phase 3 
and the wider Estates strategy: 
 
1. Rostron Building Survey:  
The survey results confirm that the building has a limited 
lifespan, but this will not affect GC’s medium-term planning.  
The maintenance cost for Rostron over 10 years is 
£450,500.  
If the roof needs replacing at some point this might be the 
time for the building to be replaced.  
Rostron’s lifespan needs to be at the forefront of any future 
capital development decisions.   
ABA asked for financial planning into the next ten to twenty 
years which includes the limited lifespan of Rostron and 
total asset replacement of the GC site.   
 
4.2. & 4.3 Highfields: This is a confidential discussion. 
 
It was agreed that SWA take legal advice, the site should 
be registered online, and the boundaries of the Highfields 
site need to be confirmed.  
SIR thanked SWA for anticipating the issues with the 
Highfields site.  
 
4. Update on Phase 3 development:  
Demolition was completed during the summer.  
The steel frame has started to go up, this will take two to 
three weeks. The metal decking follows this. 
A building shell will be in place by Christmas. 
RAR asked about noise issues for departments adjacent to 
the new build - staff have been made aware of the next 
phase of the development, one staff member was affected 
by the vibrations from a roller which lasted two days, noise 
is monitored and there is a decibel reader.  
EBO thanked SWA and CLT for their support, help, and 
communication. She shared that she is experiencing noise, 
but it is not for long periods, and it hasn’t disrupted learning.   
SWA said that conversations about exam periods are 
already underway, and that cessations of work will be 
required.  
A space has been created in the staff room for colleagues 
to work if their offices are noisy although this doesn’t help 
teaching and learning.  
EBO added that the adaptions in the staff room, which 
include standing desks are thoughtful and useful.  
 
5. Update on Hirst building: 
The 12-month defect period ends on 4/11/24. After this date 
GC are covered under warranty and will need to deal 
directly with the subcontractors and suppliers.  
Premises team have been asked to add everything into the 
list and these are being worked through with a final Defects 
Meeting on 28/10/24.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 5 

 
6. RAR raised the following issues:   
Some of the redevelopment discussion was confidential. 
The enrolment target was not met, and the late 
consideration list was used.  
RAR asked why GC are thinking about a development to 
increase capacity when GC is struggling to recruit students.  
The unfunded pay increase will increase GC’s deficit this 
AY and the government might continue this process in 
successive years.  
There are question marks around recruiting enough 
students to make developing the MUGA worthwhile.  
SWA suggested a pause around onsite development until 
the DfE build completes next summer. This will give CLT 
time to look at a significant piece of work around 
applications to enrolment (the current conversion rate from 
offers to enrolment is 65%) and work around course 
viability.   
There will be a significant space where the Science block 
was demolished which potentially could house a 
development and Rostron’s life span needs to be 
considered.  
PDI has been asked to look at trends (including national 
trends) over the last five years and this will be used as a 
rolling document. Trends change and this year Drama has 
increased, there are 20 students in A1 compared to 6 
students in A2.  
MBR agrees with the short pause to focus on Hirst, impact 
with marketing strategies, review the workings of blocks and 
the best use of classrooms.   
RAR asked about bids being ready for any future grants 
released by DfE for capital developments.  
RAR said GC’s sports facilities are inadequate and this is a 
key area where investment should be considered unless 
GC decides not to offer sport in future.  
RAR asked that realistic suggestions go to Corporation 
meeting on 14/10/24.  
SWA and MBR are meeting with KNO on 20/9/24 about the 
revised plans for Hirst and wider site plans will also be 
discussed. SWA said there is not enough money to do the 
smaller project on the MUGA currently, the plan can be 
developed up to a point where it’s ready if funding becomes 
available.  
ABA agreed about having options and projects in a pipeline. 
SIR asked about funding for the pay increases – LME said 
that standalone FE providers will not receive a contribution 
from the government. RAR gave an update that SFCA have 
taken legal advice and further action will follow. This may be 
a recurring issue that needs planning for.  
SWA asked that governors remain mindful of general 
maintenance required on site when making capital 
development decisions including the Main Building roof, fire 
doors across campus and the temperature issues in 
Cooksey. RAR said that although CIF bids will be submitted 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 5 

for the roof and fire doors, the financial assumption must be 
that these are done regardless of the outcome of CIF. 
RAR summarised that governors have agreed to continue 
with the work with KNO looking at a smaller development, 
how the remodelling will work and the cost and anticipating 
future trends.  
RAR said that staff expectations need to be managed due 
to the potential increasing cost of the remodel.  
LME asked if the pause should last until Easter, at this time 
the CIF outcome will be known, GC will have firm quotes of 
the remodel and will know how many applications for AY 
2025/26 it has.  
Committee members approved the timescales of the 
pause. 
RAR asked LME and SWA to prepare a paper to bring to 
Corporation in Spring.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME/SWA 
 
 
 
 
 

 
5. New Build Risk 
Register & Risk 
summary 

 
7. New Build Risk Register, previously circulated: 
 
There are several risks that are proposed to be archived 
which CLT have agreed, these risks are predominantly 
around the demolition.  
Risks remain for the ongoing build.  
There has been some movement with the residual risk 
ratings because the demolition phase has ended.  
 
RAR asked for an explanation of the differences between 
moving risks to archive or monitor – SWA said a live risk is 
something being actively managed, monitor means 
available mitigations to reduce the risk are in place and 
residual risk rating sits within GC’s risk appetite, archiving is 
that the risk no longer exists.  
 
RAR asked about the overlap between A&R and CDC at 
looking at these risks – SWA will wait until all the 
committees have given their risk feedback and will then 
update the risk registers and the next iteration includes all 
agreed actions from the committees.   
 
RAR asked why the summary paper details risks on the 
Hirst risk register and the Main risk register – SWA does a 
Risk Summary for both risk registers and the same 
document goes to every committee; each committee 
concentrates on the risks that they have overview of.   
 
RAR asked about P2, Enrolment targets not met and asked 
if retention should be added into the wording of this risk. 
SWA will discuss this with the CLT risk owner, adding 
retention to this risk might change the mitigations.  
MBR said day 42 starts when a student has their first lesson 
with GC which means for late enrollers day 42 is after half 
term.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SWA 



Page 5 of 5 

RAR asked about day 42 declarations to ESFA – the data 
come from registers on the student’s first lesson.  

 
6. Amended 
Terms of 
Reference 

 
The amended Terms of Reference was previously 
circulated. 
 
Amendments are highlighted.  
Proposal to change the quorum for this committee to three 
governors, last AY two meetings of CDC were inquorate 
(current quoracy is four governors). This brings the Terms 
of reference in line with the other committees at GC.  
The Capital Development Terms of Reference was 
approved by committee members. 
 
RAR said that committee membership is specified in the 
ToR from governors with specific responsibilities. Due to 
recent changes this will lead to new members joining the 
committee if the relevant governors agree. Following these 
discussions with governors the ToR membership section 
may be reviewed.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RAR/Clerk 
 

 
7. AoB 
 

 
ABA asked about the frequency of the Capital development 
meetings – they are not scheduled as often as before, RAR 
said if a decision is made not to proceed with a capital 
development the committee may be collapsed. Oversight of 
the current estate is a responsibility of Finance & Estates 
committee. 
This matter will be kept under review.    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RAR/Clerk 

 
8. Confidentiality 
 

 
Potential change of use of Highfields.   
Hirst remodel. 

 
 
 

 
9. Future 
meetings  
 

 
Next CDC Meeting, Wed, 23 Oct 24, 4pm, Teams  
                                        
                                  

 
Govs 
note 

 
Minutes prepared by Sharon Roper (Clerk to the Corporation) on 7/10/24 
 
Approved & signed by Richard Armstrong, Chair of Capital Development Committee 
on 27/11/24 
 
 


